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April 13, 2013 
 
Mr. Bruce Gillies 
Air Pollution Control Engineer 
Ministry of the Environment 
Environmental Sciences and Standards Division 
Standards Development Branch 

40 St. Clair Avenue West  - Floor 7 

Toronto ON  M4V 1M2  
 

               RE: EBR Registry No. 011-8107 – Pulp & Paper Industry Standard 

 
Dear Mr. Gillies, 
 
Please accept this submission as formal input from  the Canadian Environmental Law Association, EcoJustice, 

and Environment Hamilton regarding the draft Pulp and Paper Industry Standard under the Local Air 

Quality Regulation (O. Reg. 419/05: Air Pollution – Local Air Quality). 

 

We would like to preface our detailed comments by stating that we continue to have a fundamental concern 

with the proposed approach to using technical standards for large industrial facilities in Ontario.  Our collective 

understanding was that, when proposed as another ‘compliance option’, technical standards were being 

introduced as a way for small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) with similar emissions issues to be able to 

work together towards compliance with the provincial air standards.  We were told that this approach was 

justified because the cost to SMEs to pursue a site specific standard was too great a burden and another option 

needed to be created.   

 

Our concern now is that we are evolving beyond what we were led to believe would be the scope of the 

application of technical standards.  The draft Pulp & Paper Industry Standard serves as a prime illustrative 

example of our fears becoming reality.  The standard applies to a large sector and it has also been written in a 

manner that it will encompass all contaminants potentially released by this sector, not just the contaminants for 

which facilities are unable to meet provincial air quality standards.   This approach begs the question: “What is 

the point of developing air standards in Ontario that are protective of human health and the environment when 

we could be going down a path where these standards will no longer apply to the majority – and some of the 
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most problematic - industrial facilities in the province?”  This concern was raised back in 2004 when the MOE 

was seeking public comment on three position papers related to the proposed new Local Air Quality Regulation.  

In that submission, stakeholders including CELA underscored their concern to the MOE that exceptions to 

compliance with the air standards must not become the norm (See Appendix A for full text of 2004 submission).   

 

One reason we have been given for the growing number of both industry and equipment-based technical 

standards for larger industries is that a technical standard enables the inclusion of more prescriptive operation 

and maintenance requirements at a given facility.  However, it is important to recognize that the technical 

standard approach removes important public participation and legal accountability functions provided by the 

provincial Environmental Bill of Rights (EBR).  In contrast, incorporating such prescriptive requirements into an 

Environmental Compliance Approval (ECA) would preserve the public’s ability to exercise comment and third 

party leave to appeal rights under the provincial Environmental Bill of Rights.  The case of the industry standard 

for coke ovens and associated by-product plants offers a prime example of a scenario where this approach is 

clearly viable.  The operation and maintenance requirements set out in the US EPA equivalent (Method 303) are 

universal requirements that are applied across the iron & steel sector in the US.  Therefore, the prescriptive 

requirements being imposed to ensure proper coke oven operation and maintenance will be the same whether 

it is a coke oven in Hamilton or in Sault Ste Marie.    Another significant benefit of incorporating these 

prescriptive requirements into an ECA is enforceability; unlike a technical standard where specific steps will 

need to be taken to set out penalties for non-conformity, every element of an operational protocol like the US 

EPA’s Method 303 (Determination of Visible Emissions from By-Product Coke Oven Batteries) would become an 

enforceable condition under an ECA.   As environmental non-governmental organizations, we are very 

concerned about the public rights lost under the EBR when a technical standard route is pursued.    

 

We also have substantial concerns about the lack of openness and transparency where technical standards and 

public reporting are concerned.  Unlike Emission Summary Dispersion Models (ESDMs), there are no 

requirements under a technical standard to report to the public on any problems or progress with 

implementation.    We have put forward suggestions to MOE staff on how this might effectively be done within 

the context of a technical standard.  We  have pointed to the approach used by the US Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA) under the Maximum Achievable Control Technology ( MACT) approach.    

The  US EPA has a comprehensive system in place to ensure high levels of openness and transparency.  This is 
achieved through the Agency’s Enforcement & Compliance History On-Line or ECHO system.   As explained on 
the ECHO website, the system   “... provides integrated compliance and enforcement information for 
approximately 800,000 regulated facilities nationwide. The site allows users to find inspection, violation, 
enforcement action, informal enforcement action, and penalty information about facilities for the past three 
years. Facilities regulated under the following environmental statutes are included: Clean Air Act (CAA) 
Stationary Source Program, Clean Water Act (CWA) National Pollutant Elimination Discharge System (NPDES), 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA)” (See http://www.epa-
echo.gov/echo/about_site.html).    The site also provides public access to ECHO reports which “... provide a 
snapshot of a facility’s environmental record, showing dates and types of violations, as well as the state or 
federal government’s response. ECHO reports also contain demographic information from the National Census. 
EPA, state and local environmental agencies, and the facilities collect/report the data that are submitted to EPA 

http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/about_site.html
http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/about_site.html
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databases. For more information on the data included, please see the About the Data page” (See 
http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/index.html). 

Finally, the US EPA has in place a statutory requirement for the review of its MACT technical standards in the US  

Clean Air Act under section 112 c 6.  The requirement is that a review be undertaken no less often than every 

eight years:.  

6) Review and revision  
The Administrator shall review, and revise as necessary (taking into account developments in practices, 
processes, and control technologies), emission standards promulgated under this section no less often 
than every 8 years.  

 
We believe a similar statutory requirement for review of technical standards is necessary in Ontario.  Otherwise, 
t here is no guarantee that these standards will be routinely reviewed and updated.   
 

In conclusion, while we support the notion of clearer, more readily implemented requirements for technical 

upgrades, and more effective operation and maintenance of industrial facilities in Ontario, we have significant 

concerns about the proposed use of technical standards as the method for realizing these goals at large 

industrial facilities in Ontario.  Instead, as we have pointed out, we believe that incorporating  the prescriptive 

requirements being contemplated for technical standards into ECAs is a more viable option that will enable the 

MOE to achieve greater openness and transparency while also ensuring that industrial facilities in the province 

continue to make progress towards meeting air standards set to be protective of human health and the 

environment.   

We thank you for this opportunity to comment on the draft Technical Standard for the Pulp & Paper Sector. 

Yours truly, 

 

Lynda Lukasik, PhD  –  on behalf of   Dr. Elaine McDonald – Senior Scientist, Ecojustice 

Executive Director       & Ms. Ramani Nadarajah, Counsel – CELA Publication  No. 894

 
Environment Hamilton 

22 Wilson Street, Suite 4 

Hamilton, ON  L8R 1C5 
www.environmenthamilton.org 

TEL: (905) 549-0900 

cc The Honourable Jim Bradley – Ontario Minister of the Environment 

Gord Miller – Environmental Commissioner of Ontario 

http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/about_data.html
http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/index.html
http://www.environmenthamilton.org/













